
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, June 14, 2011                                                                              City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Approval of Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Approval of Vouchers. (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Resolution Adopting 2012-2017 Transportation Improvement Program (Vondran) 
C-4. Resolution Declaring Two Vehicles Surplus and Authorize Replacement (Akramoff) 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Briefing on Proposed Promotion-in-Place Program (Beaufrere) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Potential Litigation. (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i))  
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  

http://www.ci.covington.wa.us/�


 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  June 14, 2011   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MAY 17, 2011 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT 

STUDY SESSION WITH COVINGTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS AND COVINGTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
MINUTES AND MAY 24, 2011 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to approve the May 17, 2011 City Council Special Joint Study 
Session with Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors and 
Covington Economic Development Council Minutes and May 24, 2011 
City Council Regular Meeting Minutes.  
. 
 
 
 

1 of 43



Unapproved Draft – May 17, 2011 Special Joint Study Session with Covington Chamber of 
Commerce Board of Directors and Covington Economic Development Council 
Submitted for Approval:  June 14, 2011 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Joint Study Session with Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of 

Directors and Covington Economic Development Council 
Tuesday, May 17, 2011 

 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Joint Study Session with the Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors 
and Covington Economic Development Council was called to order in the City Council 
Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, May 17, 2011, at 
6:36 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Jennifer Gilbert, Jim Hutchinson, Craig Nickel, Rick Oliveira, Jessica Oliver, Tamara Paul, and 
Cathy Wahlin. 
 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Kaye Eilers, Jennifer Gaines, Trey Hovinga, and Scott Tenner. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Hugh Kodama, Jeff Wagner, Paul Bernal, Jennifer Gilbert, Kevin Holland, Jim Hutchinson, Rick 
Oliveira, and Steven Pand. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCILMEMBER ABSENT: 
Doug Mergenthaler and Edwin Cook. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; and Sharon 
Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to approve the agenda. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Chamber Update. 
 
Covington Chamber of Commerce Chair Rick Oliveira gave the report on the financial status and 
activities of the Chamber. 
 
Several questions were asked, and Mr. Oliveira provided responses. 

2 of 43



Unapproved Draft – May 17, 2011 Special Joint Study Session with Covington Chamber of 
Commerce Board of Directors and Covington Economic Development Council 
Submitted for Approval:  June 14, 2011 
 

 2 

 
2.  CEDC Work Plan Update. 
 
Covington Economic Development Council Co-Chair Hugh Kodama gave the report on the work 
plan for CEDC.  Plans included efforts to promote Covington, business retention and bringing in 
new businesses, reviewing economic trends, Destination Covington, Covington Business Expo, 
and several other ideas.   
 
3.  Destination Covington Update. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the report on Destination Covington including background 
information on previous events and the goals of this event.  Mr. Matheson noted the event is 
scheduled for Thursday, October 6, 2011, from 11 a.m. to 2 p.m. at Covington City Hall.  Mr. 
Matheson also mentioned the event is by invitation only and will include approximately 60 to 75 
developers, property owners, brokers, trade groups representing those groups, target businesses, 
government, utilities, and media. 
 
Group members offered comments and suggestions.  Questions were asked by group members, 
and Mr. Matheson provided responses. 
 
4.  Value Proposition Discussion. 
 
CEDC Member Paul Bernal gave the presentation on this item.   Mr. Bernal indicated that the 
information presented was an overview of the type of material that could be used at the 
Destination Covington event.  Mr. Bernal reviewed the presentation noting the historical 
perspective of the city; showing the region and how the city is centrally located; and mentioning 
the positive features of the city including an award winning community pool, senior living 
downtown, parks, community sports, community events, a gateway to recreation, easy access to 
SR 18, golf courses, motor sports, etc. 
 
There was discussion among members and comments were provided. 
 
The groups agreed to meet again the first week in September. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

3 of 43



Unapproved Draft – May 24, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 14, 2011 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, May 24, 2011 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, May 24, 
2011, at 7:04 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Wayne Snoey. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Snoey.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; 
Sara Springer, City Attorney; Salina Lyons, Senior Planner; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive 
Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
 Megan Vaughn, RN BSN, Kentwood graduate, local pediatric nurse, and doctoral student 

at University of Washington, gave a presentation entitled, “An Unmatched (Healthy) 
Quality of Life.”  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Pam Kramer, Lead Dietician at Multicare, 26027 158th Avenue SE, Covington, Lead for 
Coalition for a Healthy Community, urged Council support for the coalition’s programs. 
 
Chele Dimmett, 26626 190th Avenue SE, Covington, Board Member of Timberlane 
Homeowners Association, gave an update on the association’s recent activities and upcoming 
events.  Ms. Dimmett also mentioned a speeding problem on 265th by the stairs to the school. 

4 of 43



Unapproved Draft – May 24, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 14, 2011 
 

 2 

 
Gregg Lobdell, 26222 198th Place SE, Covington, suggested that the Arts Commission would 
benefit from new members who are proficient in creating policies and writing grants.   
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Approval of Minutes:  May 10, 2011 City Council Study Session Minutes and May 10, 

2011 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

C-2. Vouchers #25278-25340, in the Amount of $109,170.63, Dated May 2, 2011; Vouchers 
#25341-25342, in the Amount of $2,030.22, Dated May 12, 2011; and Covington Payroll 
Check #1035 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000003702-1000003719, Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $135,011.18, Dated May 13, 2011. 
 

C-3. Covington Community Sports Agreement for Use of Kent School District Recreational 
Facilities. 
 

C-4. Appoint Councilmember Marlla Mhoon as Voting Delegate for the 2011 Association of 
Washington Cities Annual Business Meeting. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Lucavish moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Arts Commission – Chair Gregg Lobdell reported on the May 12 meeting. 

: 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair David Aldous reported on the May 18 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Chair Sean Smith reported on the May 5 and May 19 meetings. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the April 26 meeting. 
 
Human Services Commission – No report.  May meeting was canceled; next meeting scheduled 
for June 9. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Appointments to the Arts Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
appoint Katrina Alegado to fill open Position No. 4 on the Arts Commission with a term 
expiring May 31, 2014.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to appoint Brieanne Berg to fill replacement Position No. 2 on the Arts Commission with a 
term expiring May 31, 2013.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 

5 of 43



Unapproved Draft – May 24, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 14, 2011 
 

 3 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson reported on the medical marijuana dispensary and shooting range 
issues and asked for Council’s feedback on how it would like to address these topics. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to add the medical marijuana dispensary 
and shooting range topics to the Planning Commission’s current work plan. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Chele Dimmett, 26626 190th Avenue SE, Covington, Board Member of Timberlane 
Homeowners Association, spoke regarding four items:   1) concerned that putting a moratorium 
on a medical marijuana application could be a public relations nightmare; 2) complimented the 
Fire Department response and after event education; 3) requested notification on any changes to 
the parade route; and 4) suggested using Timberlane greenbelts for trail connections. 
 
Covington Police Chief Kevin Klason advised that signs will be posted a couple of weeks before 
the parade. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Real Estate Acquisition. (RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)) from 8:38 to 8:45 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

6 of 43



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 14, 2011 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #25343-25405, in the Amount of $69,337.41, Dated May 16, 
2011; Vouchers #25406-25454, in the Amount of $147,648.26, Dated June 1, 2011; Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1000017573-1000017599, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $140,248.35, Dated May 27, 2011; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000029572-
1000029594, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $132,746.87. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #25343-25405, in the Amount 
of $69,337.41, Dated May 16, 2011; Vouchers #25406-25454, in the 
Amount of $147,648.26, Dated June 1, 2011; Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000017573-1000017599, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $140,248.35, Dated May 27, 2011; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000029572-1000029594, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $132,746.87. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 of 43



8 of 43



9 of 43



10 of 43



11 of 43



12 of 43



13 of 43



14 of 43



15 of 43



16 of 43



17 of 43



18 of 43



19 of 43



20 of 43



21 of 43



22 of 43



23 of 43



24 of 43



25 of 43



26 of 43



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 14, 2011 

 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE PROPOSED SIX-YEAR (2012 – 

2017) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP). 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shawn Buck, Engineering Technician and Don Vondran, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The City is required by RCW 35.77.010 to annually prepare and adopt a comprehensive 
transportation program for the ensuing six calendar years and to forward a copy of that Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Washington State Secretary of Transportation 
by July 31st.  The TIP represents the first six years of the 20-year transportation (street) capital 
investment program.  The projects contained in the proposed City of Covington Six-Year TIP 
2012 - 2017 are consistent with the transportation projects identified in the Capital Facilities 
Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan adopted December 16, 2003.  
 
A Public Hearing for the proposed 2012 – 2017 Six-Year TIP was held before the City Council 
on May 10, 2011.   
 
The projects listed in the Six-Year TIP are primarily focused on projects that would help 
alleviate current congestion problems along SE 272nd Street (Kent-Kangley, SR 516).  The first 
three projects listed (1127, 1128, and 1124) significantly increases capacity or provides 
alternatives to SE 272nd Street. 
 
Due to the lack of funding, the following Annual Safety Improvement and Annual Pedestrian 
Improvement programs will be removed from the 2012 – 2017 TIP:  
 
Annual Safety Improvements 
This program provides for the ability to address minor transportation safety issues as they are 
identified.  The scope of each improvement is anticipated to be $10,000 to $20,000 with a total 
of $50,000 in the program.  The project list and priorities will be submitted separately.  
 
Annual Pedestrian Improvements 
New pedestrian facilities are provided as an integral part of major street improvements.  This 
program will provide improvements for pedestrian facilities on an interim basis until the 
associated street project secures funding or to fill gaps generated by development activity.  The 
scope of each improvement is anticipated to be $5,000 to $15,000 with a total of $50,000 in the 
program.  The project list and priorities will be submitted separately.   
 

27 of 43



The proposed 2012 - 2017 Six-Year TIP is presented as follows: 
 
Major Capital Improvement Project Priorities 
 
1. CIP 1127 SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th Place SE  

This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion of 
SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th 
Place SE.  This project will include the crossing of 
Jenkins Creek with a new structure for the stream, 
widening the street from 2-lanes to 5-lanes including 
curb and gutter, 8’ sidewalks, access control 
features, landscaping and provisions for u-turns.   

 
 
 
 
 
2. CIP 1128 SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 192nd Avenue SE 

This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion of 
SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 192nd 
Avenue SE.  This project will widen the street from 
2-lanes to 5-lanes including curb and gutter, 8’ 
sidewalks, access control features, landscaping and 
provisions for u-turns.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
3. CIP 1124 185th Place SE Extension from Wax Road/180th Ave SE to SE 272nd Street 

This project connects SE Wax Road/180th Avenue 
SE to SE 272nd Street via a new route and alignment 
designated as 185th Place SE.  The street section will 
consist of a 3-lane urban arterial standard with curb, 
gutter and 8’ sidewalks, landscaping strips, 
illumination and stormwater infrastructure.  The 
project will also include crossing Jenkins Creek.  
The actual route and alignment will be determined 
during design.    
 
 

 
 

28 of 43



4. CIP 1063 SE 272nd Street between 160th Avenue SE and 164th Avenue SE 
This project provides for design and future 
construction of additional turn lanes, channelization, 
and signal modifications.  Widening SE 272nd Street 
will require modifications to the existing stream 
crossing at the intersection.  Project length is 800 
feet.  Construct street section consistent with the 
existing SR 516 section including illumination, 
landscaping, 10’ wide sidewalks with street trees in 
planting wells. 

 
 
 
5. CIP 1056 SE 256th Street between 172nd Avenue SE and 180th Avenue SE 

CIP 1149 180th Avenue SE between SE 256th Street and SE Wax Road (N)  
Portions of these two larger CIP projects (see map – 
Attachment 1) are being combined to provide 
improvements adjacent to the new fire station at SE 
256th Street and 180th Avenue SE.  The improve-
ments will include widening the north side of SE 
256th Street from 180th Avenue SE to 176th Avenue 
SE to match the section at 168th Avenue SE.  The 
frontage along 180th Avenue SE will be widened 
from the intersection to Crestwood Elementary 
School.  

 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Direct Staff to modify the proposed 2012 - 2017 Six-Year TIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact of each proposed project is indicated in the proposed Six-Year TIP 2012 – 
2017.  The specific revenue source(s) for the City portion of the funds for each project is 
determined each year during the budget process.  Additional revenues are needed to fund these 
projects.  Possible sources are grants, traffic impact fees and municipal bonds. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    _____Ordinance        X      Resolution  _____Motion   _____Other 
 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to pass a Resolution adopting the City of Covington Six-Year (2012 - 
2017) Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

29 of 43



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-02 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A SIX-
YEAR (2012 – 2017) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM AND DIRECTING THE SAME TO BE FILED 
WITH THE STATE SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION 
AND TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT BOARD 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 35.77 and 47.26 RCW, the City 

Council of the City of Covington has previously adopted a Comprehensive Plan including a 

Capital Facilities Element, and thereafter periodically modified said Capital Improvement 

Program (the “Program”) by resolution; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the work accomplished under the Program, 

determined current and future City street needs, and based upon these findings has prepared a 

Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program for the ensuing six (6) calendar years; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the Six-Year Transportation Improvement 

Program on May 10, 2011; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Program Adopted.  The Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 

for the City of Covington, as revised and extended for the ensuing six (6) calendar years (2012 – 

2017, inclusive), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 

reference, which Program sets forth the project location, type of improvement and the estimated 

cost thereof, is hereby adopted and approved. 

 

Section 2. Filing of Program.  Pursuant to Chapter 35.77 RCW, the City Clerk is 

hereby authorized and directed to file a copy of this resolution forthwith, together with the 

Exhibit attached hereto, with the Secretary of Transportation and a copy with the Transportation 

Improvement Board for the State of Washington. 

ATTACHMENT 1

30 of 43



 

 
 

Section 3.   Effective Date.  In order to coincide with the State Environmental 

Policy Act (SEPA) timeline, the Plan identified as Exhibit “A” and adopted in Section 1 

shall take effect on June 11, 2011. 

 

PASSED in open and regular session on this 14th day of June, 2011. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Mayor Margaret Harto 
Attested: 
 
___________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

31 of 43



Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Public Works Blue Sheets\2011 Blue Sheets\06-14-11\2012_2017_TIP_SEPA_041911.doc Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
 
City of Covington 
 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 · Covington, WA 98042 · (253) 638-1110 · Fax (253) 638-1122   
 

ADDENDUM TO SEPA 
MITIGATED DETERMINATION OF NON-SIGNIFICANCE (MDNS) 

Transportation Improvements Projects (TIP) 2012-2017 
 

Proponent: City of Covington, Public Works Department 
 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
 Covington, Washington 98042 
 253-638-1110 

Date of Original MDNS Issuance: July 5, 2001  

Date of Addendum: May 13, 2011 

City File No: SEPA11-04 

Purpose of Addendum: The proposal is to adopt the 2011 annual update to the City’s Six 
Year Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) for projects scheduled to be constructed in the 
years 2012 through 2017. An addendum is appropriate when a proposal has been modified, but 
the changes should not result in any new significant adverse impacts.  The SEPA determination 
addresses environmental impacts for transportation support for land use consistency with City 
adopted plans and policies, impacts to environmental, transportation, utilities, and capital 
facilities.  No significant adverse impacts are anticipated as a result of this proposal. 

Project Location: The proposed TIP projects include right-of-way improvements in the vicinity 
of SE 272nd St, Jenkins Creek to 185th Place Extension (CIP 1127); SE 272nd St, 185th Place to 
192nd Ave SE Extension (CIP 1128); 185th Place SE Extension, SE 272nd St to Wax Road/180th Ave 
SE (CIP 1124); portions of 180th Ave SE and SE 256th St (CIP 1056 and 1149); and SE 272nd St, 
160th Ave SE to 172nd Ave SE (CIP 1063).  All TIP improvements will occur within the boundaries 
of the City of Covington, King County Washington.  

Project Description: The proposal is to adopt the City of Covington’s Six Year TIP 2012-2017 by 
the Covington City Council.  This proposal is for the overall Capital Improvement and 
Transportation Improvement (CIP/TIP) programs.  Most of the projects under this SEPA review 
are exempt under WAC 197-11-800 because the improvements are located within existing 
street right-of-way and/or reconfiguration of existing streets. Additional SEPA review will be 
supplemented by individual project review of each non-exempt proposal, if not covered by the 
limits of the original MDNS.  A map of the proposed projects and locations of this proposal are 
identified in Attachment A.  The purpose and need of this proposal is in compliance with State 
law as defined in RCW 35.77.010 and 35.36.70A. 

Documents Reviewed: 6-Year TIP 2012-2017 (Attachment A), Description of TIP/CIP 
(Attachment B), and other information on file with the lead agency. 

EXHIBIT A

32 of 43



Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Public Works Blue Sheets\2011 Blue Sheets\06-14-11\2012_2017_TIP_SEPA_041911.doc Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 

Responsible Official/ Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
Lead Agency: City of Covington SEPA Official 
 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
 Covington, Washington 98042 
 253-638-1110 

  X  This MDNS is issued under WAC 197-11-350. The comment period is 14 calendar days and 
ends May 27, 2010 at 5 PM. 

Comments and Appeals Notice 
Comments and appeals on this MDNS may be submitted by first class mail or delivered to the 
responsible official at the above lead agency address.  Any notice of appeals must be filed in 
writing, with the required filing fee paid in cash or check and received within 14 calendar days of 
the end of the comment period at Covington City Hall Offices, i.e. by June 10, 2011 at 5 PM.  You 
must make specific factual objections, identify error, harm suffered, or identify anticipated relief 
sought and raise specific issues in the statement of appeal.  Contact the Community 
Development Department at Covington City Hall to read or to ask about the procedures for SEPA 
appeals. 
 

Signature of Responsible Official: __________________________________Date:___________ 

33 of 43



") ")

")

SR 18

SE 256TH ST

RAMP

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 272ND ST

16
4T

H A
VE

 S
E

SE WAX RD

SE 240TH ST

15
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 261ST ST

20
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 251ST ST

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

17
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

160TH AVE SE

SE 279TH PL

SE 267TH ST

19
7T

H P
L S

E

17
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND PL

SE 267TH PL

TIMBERLANE WAY SE

19
1S

T 
PL

 S
E

194
TH

 AV
E S

E

20
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 270TH PL

17
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

19
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 244TH ST

16
1S

T P
L S

E

19
3R

D 
PL

 S
E

SE 271ST ST

SE 265TH ST

SE 266TH PL

SE 244TH PL

SE 277TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

21
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE17

2N
D 

PL
 S

E
SE 262ND ST

17
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

15
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 246TH ST

17
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

16
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

16
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 259TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

18
5T

H P
L S

E

186TH PL SE

15
1S

T P
L 

SE

SE 269TH ST

20
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

TIMBERLANE DR SE

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

16
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

16
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

17
5T

H 
W

AY
 S

E

SE 270TH ST

SE 247TH ST

19
9T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 257TH  ST

17
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 264TH ST

170TH WAY SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 260TH PL
17

1S
T A

VE
 S

E

17
5T

H A
VE

 S
E

16 6TH AVE SE

16
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

159TH AVE SE

15
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE
 18

4T
H 

PL

SE 259TH  PL

18
3R

D 
PL

 S
E

17
1S

T P
L S

E

19
5T

H 
PL

 SE

19
2N

D 
PL

 S
E

16
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 249TH PL

SE 253RD PL

18
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

188TH AVE SE

SE 266TH ST

187TH AVE SE

SE 26
3R

D PL

19
2N

D A
VE

 SE

SE 258TH ST

19
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 268TH PL

16
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

20
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

15
0T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 254TH PL

21
1T

H 
AV

E S
E

16
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 256TH PL

189TH AVE SE

175T
H PL SE

159TH PL SE

18
1S

T P
L 

SE

20
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

19
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

185TH LOOP SE

17
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

18
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 263RD ST

18
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

21
2T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 257TH PL

19
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 254TH ST

SE 245TH PL

SE 246TH PL

19
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 247TH PL

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 241ST PL

SE 261ST CT

20
2N

D 
AV

E  
SE

SE 261ST PL

19
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 243RD ST

19
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 252ND PL

20
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

15
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

16
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

15
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 269TH PL

SE 248TH PL

SE 264TH  PL

SE 263RD CT

SE 280TH PL

SE 275TH ST

SE 2 65TH PL

SE 255TH PL

SE 251ST PL

183RD CT SE

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 2 78TH PL

15
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

18
7T

H  
PL

 SE

20
1S

T 
PL

 S
E

SE 271ST CT

SE 258TH  PL

186TH CT  SE

19
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 255TH ST

15
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

162
ND

 PL
 SE

20
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 242ND ST

SE 2 41ST ST

163RD  PL SE

15
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

20
1S

T  
C

T 
SE

SE 268TH CT

18
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 27 0TH CT

193
RD

 CT
 SE

187TH CT SE

SE 271ST PL

19
8T

H 
CT

 S
E

SE 277TH S T

SE 24 4TH LN

60
TH

 P
L 

SE

SE 2 5 2 ND  C T

SE  245T H CT

16
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

20
1S

T P
L S

E

SE 270TH PL

16
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 264TH ST

SE WAX RD

18
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

191S T P L SE

19
0T

H 
P L

 S
E

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 2 6 1 ST  C T

16
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 261ST ST

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

201ST AVE SE

SE 251ST PL

20
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

19
5T

H  
PL

 SE

SE 258TH ST

SE 262ND PL

18
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND ST

19
2N

D A
VE

 SE

SE 271ST ST

SE 266TH ST

SE 264TH ST

19
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

SE 253RD PL

SE 263RD ST
SE 264TH ST

16
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

SE 260TH ST

SE 266TH ST

SE 262ND ST
SE 262ND ST

SE 265TH ST

188TH AVE SE

15
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 269TH ST

SE 267TH ST

SE 254TH ST

SR 18

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 2 60 TH  ST

SE 271 ST  CT

SE 266TH ST
SE 266TH  PL

SE 267TH PL

SE 268TH  ST

SE 259TH PL

SE 259TH ST

SE 270TH ST

SE 257TH ST

SE 271 ST ST

166TH AVE SE

SE 264TH ST

15
7T

H 
AV

E  
SE SE 259TH PL

21
1T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH ST

SE  279TH PL

SE 263RD ST

SE 269TH ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

183RD PL SE

SE 26 5TH ST

18
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 258TH STSE 258TH ST

SE 259TH PL

19
5T

H P
L S

E

SE 260TH ST

20
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

19
6T

H A
VE

 S
E

SE 268TH  ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 261ST  PL

SE 267TH PL

18
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

163
RD

 AV
E S

E

160TH PL SE

SE 261ST ST

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 267 TH ST

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND PL

SE 264TH ST

SE 269TH ST

RAMP

SE 262ND PL

SE 267TH PL
SE 268TH ST

16
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 258TH ST

SE 252ND PL

19
3R

D 
PL

 S
E

SE 263RD PLSE 263RD PL

SE 262ND ST

SE 24 4TH PL

SE 261S T PL

SE 243RD ST

16
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

186TH P L SE

SE 263RD PL

161ST PL SE

SE 257TH ST

SE 254TH PL

18
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

172ND AVE SE

SE 267TH PL

SE 268TH ST

SE 260TH PL

168TH PL SE

19
2N

D 
PL

 S
E

SE 268TH ST

SE 270TH ST

20
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

20
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 250TH  PL

16
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 2 65TH PL

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 25 0TH CT

17
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
3R

D 
P L

 SE

SE 2 6 4 TH CT

SE  259TH CT

SE 260T H CT

16
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

1 98TH PL SE

SE  265TH  C T

SE 26 3RD ST

SE 252ND PL

16
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

16
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 2 69TH ST

SE 263RD  P L

174TH PL SE

SE 263RD ST

166
TH

 PL S
E

185TH AVE SE

SE 261ST CT

SE 26 6TH ST

SE 261ST PL

SE 251ST ST

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 264TH PL

16
7T

H 
AV

E  
SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 264TH PL

20
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
7T

H 
PL

 SE

SE  266TH PL

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE WAX RD

SE 272ND ST

168th PL SE

165
th PL SE

SE 270TH PL

Pipe Lake

1063

11281127

1124

1149

1056

This map is intended for planning purposes only. 
Information was compiled from the most accurate 
sources generally available.

6-Year Transportation Improvement 
Projects 2012-2017

City of Covington

O:\WorkSpace\projects\0026\6 Year TIP.mxd
Created By: Shawn Buck 04/19/2011

.

34 of 43

slyons
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A



35 of 43



 Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 14, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER RESOLUTION DECLARING TWO VEHICLES AS SURPLUS 

PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZE REPLACEMENT. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 1. Proposed Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ross Junkin, Maintenance Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Staff is seeking Council’s approval to surplus two vehicles per the City’s Fleet Management 
Policy Section 11. 
 
The City currently owns the following vehicles: 

• 1992 International 5-Yard  Dump Truck (VIN 1HTGBNXR8NH406629) – Asset #2577, 
Replacement Date:  08/30/11 

• 1999 Dodge Pickup Truck (VIN 3B7HC12Y7XG220180) – Asset #2673, Replacement 
Date:  12/05/11 

 
In beginning research for a dump truck to replace the 1992 5-Yard International Dump Truck, we 
expected to spend approximately $50,000.  A few weeks ago maintenance staff found a 
replacement dump truck at King County surplus.  This replacement dump truck will provide 
newer technology, be much more versatile, and will more effectively meet the needs of our small 
Covington maintenance fleet.  This dump truck, a 2005 Freightliner SwapLoader has the 
capability to swap attachments in minutes.  This will allow our crews to build on the capabilities 
of what we do without the added costs of additional large vehicles.  The new purchase price for 
this type of dump truck is about $175,000.  The 2005 SwapLoader is currently being held at 
King County surplus with a price of $47,000.  Dump trucks of this caliber are very rare to find 
for sale in surplus especially in this condition and in this price range.  Staff believes that we have 
met the equipment replacement guidelines in the Fleet Management Policy and therefore the 
Fleet Manager requests that the 5-Yard International Dump Truck be approved for early 
replacement (2 months early) and purchase authority for its replacement be approved. 
 
The 1999 Dodge Pickup Truck is scheduled for replacement this December however, the 
transmission is currently failing.  Transmission repair costs would exceed the value of this 
vehicle.  Staff believes that we have met the equipment replacement guidelines in the Fleet 
Management Policy and therefore the Fleet Manger requests that this vehicle be approved for 
early replacement (6 month early) and purchase authority for its replacement be approved. 
 

36 of 43



Staff is seeking council authorization to allow the disposal of these two vehicles in the most cost 
effective manner possible and authorize budget authority to use the replacement funds to replace 
our current vehicles with similar use vehicles immediately upon locating such vehicles. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
1. Not declare the vehicle surplus and continue to perform costly repairs. 
2. Not replace the vehicle. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These vehicles will be replaced with the funds set aside each month ($333 per month per vehicle) 
during the last five years in the Equipment Replacement Fund. 
 
The 1999 Dodge Pickup Truck (Asset #2673) currently has $17,982 set aside for replacement.  
These funds will be adequate for the replacement of a similar vehicle. 
 
The 1992 International 5-Yard Dump Truck (Asset #2577) currently has $18,981 set aside for 
replacement.  This vehicle will require approximately $30,000 in additional monies from the 
Equipment Replacement Fund which currently has a balance of $148,179 which is unassigned.  
Although it is difficult to predict future costs associated with replacing this type of vehicle, City 
staff will set aside what we anticipate to be adequate funds for replacement of this vehicle. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance      X    Resolution   _____Motion   _____Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember________________ 
seconds, to pass a resolution declaring the 1992 International Dump Truck 
and 1999 Dodge Pickup Truck as surplus property and authorize 
replacement. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

 

37 of 43



RESOLUTION NO. 11-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
DECLARING TWO VEHICLES AS SURPLUS PROPERTY 
AND AUTHORIZE REPLACEMENT. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Covington maintains a vehicle fleet to complete City business; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City has a vehicle replacement program to replace vehicles on a 

scheduled basis to maintain a functioning fleet; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Covington owns a 1992 International 5-Yard Dump Truck 

(Asset #2577) and 1999 Dodge Pickup Truck (Asset #2673) which are due for the scheduled 

replacement in 2011; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Financial Management Policies require that titled vehicles be 

surplused by City Council resolution; now, therefore 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, King County, 

Washington, as follows: 

 Section 1.  The City Council does hereby declare that the 1992 International 5-Yard 

Dump Truck (VIN 1HTGBNXR8NH406629) and 1999 Dodge Pickup Truck (VIN 

3B7HC12Y7XG220180) are surplus to the needs of the City and authorizes disposal of the 

vehicles in the most cost effective manner and to use these vehicle’s replacement funds to 

purchase replacement vehicles in the future as needed. 

 PASSED in open and regular session on this 14th day of June, 2011. 

 

       _____________________________ 
       Mayor Margaret Harto 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

38 of 43



Agenda Item 1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  June 14, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:   BRIEFING ON PROPOSED PROMOTION-IN-PLACE PROGRAM 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:   City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT (S):  None  
 
PREPARED BY:  Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager  
 
EXPLANATION:    
Throughout 2009, it was necessary for the City of Covington to institute major staffing cutbacks 
in reaction to a floundering local and national economy.  In January 2009, the City’s FTE’s (not 
including part-time Aquatics Center staff or seasonal workers) were at 46.5.  At the present time, 
the number is down to 34.75 FTE’s (with one position vacant)—representing a loss of 11.75 
FTE’s (not including the vacant position), or 25.3%.  That loss is made up of two (2) Public 
Works Department FTE’s (or 14.3% of the original department) and nine and three-quarters 
(9.75) Community Development Department FTE’s (or 60.9% of the original department).   
 
The city made the careful choice to cut positions that were directly affected by budgetary 
shortfalls rather than to make arbitrary cuts or to take general, widespread actions such as unpaid 
citywide furloughs that would have temporarily decreased expenditures but not fixed the longer-
term issue.  As a result of the dramatic decrease in personnel—especially in the Community 
Development Department—the city was left with a lean staff made up of core employees, many 
of whom are wearing multiple hats and/or taking on a significantly expanded workloads, 
especially during times such as the present when the economy appears to be at least temporarily 
rebounding.  Further, it is highly unlikely that the city’s current staffing level will significantly 
increase in the foreseeable future.  
 
The city considers its employees especially valuable due to their skills, work ethic, and 
institutional knowledge.  Because staffing is lean, the loss of even one key employee could have 
a very negative and long-lasting effect on city processes as well as the rest of the workforce.  
When a vacancy is created, institutional knowledge and efficiency is normally lost for a 
significant length of time.  Additionally, even the best new hires take a great amount of time, 
effort and money to successfully complete complex hiring and training processes, placing a 
further burden on the remaining staff.  The time is ripe, therefore, for the city to examine and 
incorporate ways to retain a workforce that is only a “single layer deep” in order to ensure it may 
continue to adequately serve its citizens and customers and strive to maintain high customer 
service standards. 
 
In this regard, two recent surveys have been administered to staff.  The first was an Employee 
Recognition Survey, in which all staff responded about their preferences surrounding employee 
recognition (appreciation).  A second, more comprehensive Employee Satisfaction/Retention 
Survey queried benefitted staff about top reasons for either staying employed or considering 

39 of 43



leaving employment with the city; the city’s various forms of compensation and benefits; staff 
morale, and more.  Prior to the execution of the survey, however, the city’s management team 
had already embarked on designing a new, comprehensive compensation program for the 
following reasons:  to update the city’s compensation philosophy; provide a more predictable 
structure for salary surveys as well as an economically feasible way to fulfill indicated actions; 
review benefits with an eye toward increasing “intangible” benefits where practicable; and 
generally ensure the program’s guidelines would be established in such a manner to not only aid 
in retaining the city’s core staff, but also boost employee morale and, consequently, employee 
engagement. 
 
Well in advance of distributing the Employee Satisfaction/Retention Survey, it was already 
known that a source of frustration to city employees was the lack of advancement opportunities 
within the city.  This has proven to be particularly frustrating in recent years when a number of 
employees have increased their job scope and workload—either due to downsizing or to an 
increased number and sophistication of city programs or processes, or even a combination of 
both.  Additionally, some of those employees may be “topped out” at the highest step of their 
salary range, further adding to their frustration.  There are two logical solutions to this 
situation—the first is to ensure salary surveys are completed in a timely fashion so that job 
responsibilities may be correctly assessed in relation to salary range.  The second solution the 
management team has begun to move forth with is a “Promotion-in-Place Program,” based on a 
model already well into the planning stages in the Public Works Department by Public Works 
Director Glenn Akramoff.   
 
The Promotion-in-Place Program highlights include the following: 
 
• The city must have a demonstrated need for promotional opportunity. 

 
• Pre-established guidelines have been set forth for every case considered for promotion. 

 
• “Promotion-in-Place” refers only to those promotions that follow a logical career 

progression into a higher position, usually in a related job series—it does not include 
promotions into a supervisory or managerial position. 

 
• The employee must initiate a form that will be used for considering a Promotion-in-Place, 

and ensure that pre-established requirements, including a complete job description for the 
proposed promotional opportunity, have been or will soon be fulfilled. 

 
• Requesting employee’s supervision grants initial approval. 

 
• The Finance Department provides confirmation of budgetary alignment. 

 
• A Review Committee screens each request and submits it to the City Manager for final 

approval. 
 
• A limited number of Promotion-in-Place opportunities will be allowed for in the annual 

budget. 

40 of 43



 
ALTERNATIVES:  None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Fiscal impact will occur in as Promotion-in-Place opportunities are approved and in alignment 
with the approved annual budget. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution              Motion          X    Other  
 

No action is necessary.  The content of this agenda bill is being provided to 
the City Council for informational purposes only. 

 

41 of 43



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: June 14, 2011  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

June 28 – City Council Regular Meeting 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42 of 43



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, June 28, 2011                                                                              City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
  
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Parks & Recreation Month Proclamation – July 2011 (David Aldous) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers shall 
address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving comment 
from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  If 
additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Approval of Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Approval of Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Extend McLeod Reckord Contract for Park Design Review (Thomas) 

 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Arts Chair Gregg Lobdell:  June 9 Meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair David Aldous:  June 15 Meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  June 2 and June 16 Meetings. 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  June 9 Meeting. 
• Economic Development Co-Chair Hugh Kodama:  June 23 Meeting; May meeting canceled. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss Selection of Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year (Slate) 
2. Discuss Integra Franchise Renewal (Akramoff) 
3. Citizen Police Volunteer Program (Klason) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  If needed 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial (253) 
638-1110.  

Draft 
as of 06/09/11 

 

43 of 43

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	06-14-11 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, June 14, 2011                                                                              City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE

	Consent 1 Green Sheet 06-14-11 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent 1 Attachment 1 05.17.11 Special Joint SS with Chamber & CEDC
	Consent 1 Attachment 2 05.24.11 Reg CC
	Consent 2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 06-14-11
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent 2 Attachment
	Consent 3 Green Sheet 06-14-11 6 Yr TIP 2012-2017 Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent 3 Attachment 1 06-14-11 6 Yr TIP 2012-2017 Resolution
	PASSED in open and regular session on this 14th day of June, 2011.

	Consent 3 Attachment 1 Exhibit A 2012_2017_TIP_SEPA_041911
	Consent 3 Attachment 1 Exhibit A Attachment A 6_yr_tip_map
	Consent 3 Attachment 1 Exhibit A Attachment B 6_yr_tip_map
	Consent 4 Green Sheet 06-14-11 Surplus Vehicles Blue Sheet
	Consent 4 Attachment 1 06-14-11 Surplus Vehicles Resolution
	Item 1 06-14-11- Briefing on Proposed Promotion-in-Place Program
	Agenda Item 1

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	06-28-11 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, June 28, 2011                                                                              City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION




